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2 Previous violation(s) closed 
L- 

Lx 3 The violation(s), specifically described to you by the inspector as non-cited violations, are not being cited because they were self- 
- identified, non-repetitive, and corrective action was or IS being taken, and the remaining criteria in the NRC Enforcement Pol~cy, NUREG- 

1600, to exercise discretion, were satisfied 

~~~~~ One ~~~ ~~~ ~ Non-Cited Violation(s) wadwere discussed involving the following requirement(s) and Corrective Action(s): 
The licensee failed to dispose of licensed material by decay in stora e or transfer to an authorized 
recipient in accordance with 10 CFR 20.2001. Specifically, on July j ,  2007, the licensee placed 
microcurie uantities of technetiu.m-99m into the normal trash, which, alarmed the local landfill radiation 
detectors. 1 s  corrective action, licensee personnel retrieved the radioactive material from the landfill, 
placed the material into its decay in storage waste, revised its procedures to ensure that all tubin 
associated with cardiac stress tests be placed in the radioactive waste container and instructed s aff on 
the revised procedure. 
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4 During this inspection certain of your activities, as described below and/or attached, were in violation of NRC requirements and are being 
: cited This form is a NOTICE OF VIOLATION, which may be subject to posting in accordance with 10 CFR 19 11 

(Violations and Corrective Actions) 
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PROGRAM SCOPE 

The licensee was a large medical facility located in Evansville, Indiana, which served the southwest Indiana areas 
and nearby areas of Kentucky and Illinois. The licensee was authorized for 35.100, 200 and 300 materials, 
prepackaged kits. The nuclear medicine department was staff with 5 full time technologists, 1 part time 
technologist and 1 on call technologist. The licensee's staff typically administered approximately 75 studies per 
week. The licensee received unit doses and 150 millicuries of bulk technetium-99m daily for after hour and 
weekend studies. The studies primarily used technetium-99m for cardiac, bone, gall bladder and other studied. In 
addition, the licensee performed studies using F-18, and indium-I 11. The licensee performed approximately 2 
thyroid therapy treatments per week using iodine-I 31 in capsule form. The licensee performed nuclear medicine 
at its main hospital and an outpatient nuclear medicine facility located with the medical center, but separate from 
the hospital. All waste was held for decay or returned to the nuclear pharmacy. 

The licensee also operated a cesium-I37 blood irradiator at the blood bank. The licensee had discontinued HDR 
treatments. 

Performance Observations 

The inspector observed several diagnostic administrations of licensed material including dose preparation and 
disposal. Licensee staff discussed/demonstrated dose calibrator daily constancy checks, package receipt, daily 
and weekly contamination surveys and wipes, with no issues identified. Interviews of staff indicated an adequate 
knowledge of radiation safety procedures. The inspector reviewed dosimetry records and noted the following 
whole body (WB) and extremity exposures: 71 8 mrem WB and 3630 mrem extremity for 2008; 586 mrem WB and 
5480 extremity for 2009; and 250 mrem and 3630 mrem extremity for 2010 to July 31. 

The inspector reviewed radiation safety committee meeting minutes and noted that the licensee discussed and 
issue involving a load of waste sent to the local sanitary landfill that set of the radiation alarm at the landfill. The 
licensee was notified and sent a technologist to the landfill who surveyed the waste from the hospital and indented 
a bag with elevated activity. The bag was transported back to the hospital and identified three syringes and tubing 
from three cardiac studies performed the previous day that were stressed using Adenosine. The licensee took a 
swipe of the syringes and tubing and using a well counter identified 1.2 microcuries of activity. Based on the 
energy range of the activity, the licensee identified the material as technetium-99m. The syringes and tubing was 
placed in the licensee decay in storage radioactive waste. As corrective actions he licensee revised its procedures 
to ensure that all tubing associated with cardiac stress tests be placed in the radioactive waste container and 
instructed staff on the revised procedure. This failure to dispose of radioactive waste by decay in storage or by 
transfer to a licensed recipient is a violation of 10 CFR 20.2001 and will be treated as a non-cited violation since it 
was licensee identified and corrected. 
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